Tucson Fire Department

The First Twenty Years




TFD: The First Twenty Year§8811900

The Tucson Fire Departmenbegan as an Anglo fraternal clubyas beset with
political arguments about orgaization and management, experienceseveaal false
starts, for 20 years was an alfolunteer organization,suffered from a limited water
supply, andstruggled toadequately equiptself in tough economic times

The last two decades of the T&enturywere a difficult period for Tucson. An economic depression
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Lawlessness and Violencdn these years, frontieTucson endwed a sustained periodf lawlessness
including gunfightsandstagecoach and train robberies.

Two of the more famous gunfights occurredht on the streets of TucsonOn March 20, 1882he
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Tombstone owboy Frak Stillvell along therailroadtracks near the Southern Pacibdepot- supposedly
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Tucson historian C. L. Socimsen described another shooting that occurred almost a decade later,
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occurred m September 24, 1891,
when two of its most prominent
citizens engaged in a gun duel at the
corner of Pennington and Church
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lawyer Francis J. Heney for
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domestic dispute with lawyer Heney
managing to kill Handy with his own

gun?
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! Duringthe early 1880s, shootings were not uncommon in the southwest, indeed across the entire U.S. In New
Mexico, Sherriff Pat Garrett killetthe desperado Billy the Kid in July 1881. In Washington DC, President James
DFNFASEtR RASR FTNRY |y | &a0lKaSa AAYYOFEl Yoddkat $aiD diyydr WIRIKIGE S idO!
Tombstone in October 1881. And in April 1882, famed outlaw Jémses was gunned down in Saint Joseph,
Missouri. Southeastern Arizona was infested with all sorts of amtorious scoundrels including Doc Holliday and
Johnny Ringo (no relatido authorsg.

2 Handy was a curious mix of compassion and anger. Fromta8F@91, he practiced medicine in Tucson, highly
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Stagecoachand train robberies werealso common in the
Tucson area.According to the fascinating bookEncyclopedia f

of Stage Robbery in Apiza, there were 129 stagecoac
robberies in Arizona between 1875 and 1903. Eleven of th
occurred in Pima County, including two robberies near pres¢=s
day Marana, single robberiesar Patagonia and present daf™
Green Valley, and a robbery of the Tuc<puijotoa stage. '
The first train robbery occurredni 1887 at the Pantano
Station, B miles east of Tucson.

On the brighter sidg thirty-five years of debilitating Indian

) i i Well knownDr. John Handy attacket
Wars came to a closi the mid1880s,with Apache leader

lawyer Francis Heney on the streets
Tucson in 1891. (Courtesy of
Wikimedia)

D S N2 5 findlaurende? In Tucson,
Fort LowdiQ& A Y LJ2 NIasugply N €
center for troops in the fieldvas over

On November 8, 188Tucson hil a
huge parade to pay honor t&eneral
Nelson A. Miles to whom Geronimo
finally surrendered.

Expanding Rail Network The
Southern Pacific Railroad reached
Tucson from @lifornia on March 20,
1880,and continued buildiy eastward
and hooked up on March 8, 1881 with

C. S. Fly photographed Geronimo posing with members of

tribe and Gendll f DS2NEBS / NR21Qa al _ _
Wikimedia) an Atchison, Topeka & Santa e in

regarded as a physician and for his willing service to poor Tucsonans and Apidahey. also belonged to many
civic organizations and was a charter member and early president of the Society of Arizoeer®iarhich later
became the Arizona Historical Society. But Handy also had a dark side and was regarded by some as a dangero@
man. While serving as an interpreter of the Apache language for the U.S. Army in 1870, he shot and killed a ma
in an argumeh In 1879 Handy and another doctor got into an argument about how a patient had died. At a
hearing to determine the cause of death, the two doctors got into a brawl and had to be restrained.

3 Starting in late 1850s, Geronimo fought against btxican and U.S. troops and became famous for his daring
exploits and numerous escapes. He was captured in 1877 and sent to the San Carlos Reservation eastlof Globe.
1881 Geronimo left the reservation to join other bands to fight the growing numbet@. troops. He was
pursued into Mexico, talked into returning to the reservation in 1884, escaped aga®85, agreed in a parley to
surrender, but broke free once again. On September 4, 1886, Geronimo surrendered for the final(fane
details, se Arizona ReflectionsLiving History from the Grand Canyon Stteingbrothershistory.com.)




New Mexicoto complete a transcontinentaroute. Southern Pacific continued building easird to

make connections to Ne Orleans by January 1888/leanwhilein 18811882, the Atchison, Topeka &
Santa Fe built a New Mexico & Arizona line from Benson to Nogales, connecting with the Sonora
Railroad to the important trade center Guaymas on the Gulf of California. Over théwtexlecades,
connecton railwayswere builtin Arizonafrom the transcontinental route¢o outlying towns and mines.

By 1900 you could take a train from TucsonRmescott, Phoenix, Nogales, Globe, Tombstone, and
Bisbee.

This slowly expanding rail neBMNJ g2 dzf R 0 S  Odiditérdevelbpmén? Anglalzti@g v Q &
were now able & reach Tucson in large numbengrecipitating aslow change in Tucson from a Mexican
agricultural economy to an Anglo urban cent&he railroad brought heavy equipmiethat enabled

efficient mining development in places like Tombstone and Bisbee. Cattle ranching in southeastern
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Casa Grande, Benson, and Wiletrad been planted to ensure future growth and development aso

southern Arizona. By the 189 ¢ da@ohderfulxiimate was attracting thousands of health seekers
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Economic Diffiulties. Ironically, the completion of the transcontinentalilroad initially brought grave
economic problems td'ucson. For example, féer two decades of dominatinghe southern Arizona
(wagon) freighing businessthe Tully andOcha Companly dzA O1 t @ F2dzy R GKI G GKSe@
the railroad. They tried to cut eenses andold some of their assets to raise capital, but finally were
forced out of business in 1884. sktirian Sonnichsen described othmlamitouseffects on Tucson:

Y

-

a any of the old firms were already in trouble. Stock on hand had to be sold at loss to
compete with the cheap new goods brought in by rail. Old customers failed to pay
promptly when money was desperately needed, and some did not pay at all
Catastrophe2 f f 2 SR ® X 2AfEALY %SO1ISYR2NF OYSNOKE yF
1883. Safford, Hudson & Compdimank failed in 1884. Solomon Warner closed the
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dozenyears, from 1884 to 1896. All noajindustries were affected. Tucson historiavid Devine
described the effect of decreased mining:

G¢KS aAf @SN YAySa 2F ¢2Yo60au2ySs 2y0S (Kz2dAaAgi
playing out and then flooded. The result was an economic calamity for Tucson with

YIye 2F (KS Oestdhsded husidessas bding jo@ed to shut their doors
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The cattle industry was also hard hit. Heavy rains in the late 1880s, followed by scant rain in the early
1890s,caused ranchers to suffeevere lossesn overstocked ranges.
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Population Dynamics ! & KAAG2NA LY {2y Yy A OKay in ¥rizdns [Rufing the dz& S
1880s] that the population of Tucson, its largest city, declined in 1890 to a little over-5j@®th 2,000
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population hadrecovered tojust over 7,500- a net growth of fever than 500 peoplgabout seven
percent)overtwo decades.

City Development With the pace of
growth slowed due to the long
economic depression, Tucson sti
managed tocontinue its transition
towards an American city. The
commercial district expandetb the =<

south and eastward alog Congress

Street, with new residenial

neighborhoodsarising on the fringes

Along with the growing Angloj#

influence came a change in buildinjEEss

styles - from adobe to brick and

lumber. Development noviollowed [§

traditional Anglo patterns, based on g3

grid concept of expansiorwith more E ; i ,g, ) ;
multistory commercial buildingsand | x Negeview of Tucson in 1899. Looking southwest towards
houses set back from the street or San Augustine Cathedral. (Courtesy tioé Arizona Historical
ample lots. Societv)
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newspaper was connected to the telegraph officas lighting was introduced in 1882, a few months

before the first delivery of a reliable water supply to the downtown area. The first attempts to provide

Tucson with electricity also ouarred in 1882 but fell short of expectationsa successful electric

company was not organized until 189Zhe automobile made its first appearance in Tucson in 1899.

. & UKS SyR 2F GKS wmydcdna ¢dz0az2y ¢l a ( dddzpréviddd & NJ A f
most of the jobs and paid more local taxes than any other business in town. Their operations in Tucson
included not only running the trains with engineers, conductors and brakemen, but also substantial

‘hyS 02YLRYSYlG 2F ¢dz0a2y Qa LiBelgextentayd & AnglggirodingFrdnS25® mt & y Ol

1880 to 4P6 in 1900. This trend would continuatil 1960.



maintenance facilities employing mechesi machinists, boilermakers, blacksmiths, and builders.
Southern Pacific even had its own fire department.

The most important development to
Tucso & T detirdgNi@se years
was the opening of the University of
Arizona in 1891. Started on 40
donated acresabout a mileto the
northeast of downtown, UAsat on
the edge of the Tucson city limits. A
horse/mule drawn streetcar system
was introduced in 1897 to connect
the downtown area with UA.

= .2 e
Tucson about 1885 looking east. The Southern P&ifitoad Tucson seemedi2z 65 aol O
round house is on the right. (Courtesy Mountain States F $§(j = ¢ h tliedi” ceatAni just
Telephone & Telegragbompany) around the corner Tucson still
sufferedkey deprivations of territorial frontier tog y* ® ¢ KS {26y Qénpasied,XdB Bind N
had nosanitarysewer system, and Aona would not be admitted asneAmericarstate for morethan a
decadein 1912.

Tucson Fire Department

Formation and Organization By mid
1881 concerned Tucson citizens hg
noted the increasing number of fireg
in the city, had observed that ne
buildings in town were beingjse
constructed of (more fireulnerable) §
wood rather than traditional adobe, |«
and realized that even moref
flammable building materials and
furnishings were being unloaded dail' Old Main was the first building completed at the University
at the railroad depot. It was time for Arizona in 1891. (Courtesy of History of Arizona)

the growing city (they thought) of

Tucson to have a fire department.

In late Jue 1881, éss than four months after trains began arriving in Tucson from thedfatste new
transcontinental route, the forerunner ahe Tucson Fire Department was baxa theTucson Hook and
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Ladder Company No, tvith SamBaird a 34year oldCanadiarborn shoestore clerk named as Chief
and Jack Boleyn, wheerated a hauling business, designasesiForeman

As the @y struggled to stave ofconomic depression in the earl380s,newspaper records of the day
0{SS G/ KNRy2f2dpOthbE 2 ¥ a i shhFthadhp first NucDrdfire organization
diedin its first yeabut had to be resuscitatequicklyin a new form in the face of increasing fire danger.

On May 28, 1882 Tucson Hook & Ladder CamgpNo. 1 dissolvetecause its membership fdelow

the requirementsa SG Ay GKS 2 NAI y Di JuieM2 1882 Ehe Dgsitalunteei Biré A 2 y
Association was organizedith Thomas A. Hallaham clerk at the Palace Hotelamed as Chiefand

Jak Boleyragain designateds Foremarf the Association

According to an early history of tHEucsorfire department(seed ! NI A Of SaX | A&ali2NB X

I
¢ C B this websit®, two recurring issues plagued early fitempany2 NB | Yy A T | (i thelatk of T F 2 Bl &

community supparand constant iffighting ofleading Tucsonas over who would occupyositions of
K2Yy2NJ gA0KAY GKS O2YLI ye o¢

Finally in 1883, Tucson adoptedevised City Barter, and on May 8 approved Ordinace No. 45 that
officially created theTucson Fire DepartmenfT FD)and OrdinanceNo. 46 that defined fire regulations
(Sed ¢ dzOa 2y | A&l 2Q@indncedmiyiy®é / Ky NIIISMNA 6So0aAiGSdo

The Cheer confirmed that Tucson would be governed by mayor (at the time, Charles Strauss,
accountant and member of the Tucson Volunteer Fire Association) aidparsonCommon Council.
The Mayor and Common Council weelected by the citizens of
Tucson onan annual basis. The duties of the Common Council
included:

for the prevention and extinguishment of fires; to organize and
maintain a fire department, and provide the compensation of the
officers and members thereof whenever in their judgement it is
necessary to organize a paid fire department; to establish fire
limits and prescribe what character of buildings and other
a0NHzOGdzNB& YIed 0S SNBOGSFK

In addition three members of the Common @il were assigned to a
FireCommittee to oversedFD operations.

/ KI' NI $a { G N} dz Ordinance 458 S dzLJ 'y 2NBFYAT FGA2y 27
mayor when the TFD wa throwing engine companies, not more than two hose companies and
formally authorizedn 1883 y2Ui Y2NB (KIy Gg¢2 K2 2wih rminikm énd RR S §J
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would not purchase a hook and ladder wagon until 1886. The only firefighting equipment authorized for purchase
in late Junel881 were a few rubber buckets, axes, picks, shovels, and two primitive fire extinguishers described as

two buckets with pump handles sticking out.
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maximum membership defined for each company. The TFDiavias led by a Chief Engineand an
Assisant Chief Engineer, who woulde electel annually On August 7, 1883the minutes of the
Common Council record thdack Boleyn was apijmted Chief Engineer of the Tucson Fire Department.

Ordinance 45 also set rules to distinguish the Chief Engineer and Assistant Chief Engireckeld

GThe Chief Engineer shall bestihguished while on duty by silver or white metal speaking
trumpetbeary 3 2y S o6f F O] 0 CheRaxd irydditinkdthissitzsiRbe Wroper

for himto wear awhitebg R 2y (G KS KI G 0 S tobekhet With GrkaPprogratbl R~ W/
badge on his left breast.

The badges or insignia worn or carried by #fesistant Chief Engineer while on duty shall differ
from those of the Chief Engineer only in that the speaking trumpet shall travélack bands,
FYR (GKS ¢g2NRadz¥2 A adhms y{HiRAKASFNY dzLl2y (GKS 0 NS

Ordinance 46 defined cityide rules ér fire safety inspections and handling/storage of combustible
materials like candles and lamps, straw, ashes, and explosives. There were also rulesnagd@rsig
with TFDoperations ordamaging firefighting apparatus and alarm systéms.

For 15 yeas the TFD continued to operate under this organization but suffered almost continuously
from waer availability. Things came to head on September 1898 whenthe TFDwas unable to
effectively fight theenormousRadulovich Buildingire that engulfed sesral businesses. (See below)
The welldisciplined fire brigade of the Southern Pacific Railroad, using its own equipment and source of
water, was able to at least prevent the fire from expandingtieer buildings.

TheTucson Citizeim an article headlinetl G D22 R [ Saaz2y F2NJ G6KS / AdGex¢
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helplessness in which the city would find itself in another conflagration. Had it not been for the
prompt and noble attendance of the railroad boys with their matchless stream, perhaps a good

LI NI 2F GKS OAGe ¢2dd R 6S Ay FakKSa (2RI & oé

The morale of the TFD was crushed; membership dropped to just six men, an@phgndent was
disbanded within thenonth, basedon membership dropping below the Ordinance 45 minimum

On October 2, 1898hopeful about new pumping improvements to the water systehge TFD was
reorganizedwith Frank Russeltity councilman andhardware store owner, as Chief. ildr changes
were madeto the managemenof the several fire companies and an incentive to join the reorganized

fire department, charter members were exempt from poll taxes and city taxes to the extent of $1,000
worth of property.

®ForperspectivE y 2GS GKIG t KAfIFRSEfLKAL T2 NWBiRdelpht SideFerdploged T A
the first hand drawn hook and ladder truck and the first hose wagon at the turn of tedstury.




Six months later in March 1899 the Mayor aBdmmon Council approved Tucson Ordinance No. 120
that addedto the TFDfi KS { 2 dzii K S NJ/ s TucsOri Firé\ EdigaBel A K SRBER®R G SNJI i 2
active members of the Fire Department of the City of TucZon.

Firefighters In the 1880s and 1890Bué 2 Yy Q& CANB 5SLI NI YSyid 41 & L2
Volunteer Fire Department (TVFB@causell K S (ierly fifedighters were unpaidmale) volunteers.
hyS KA&al2NRI Yy [fileodapariidrs REmbeisavre/ falktime merchants, farmers, and
20KSNI 20t QffiN@sT B@emekh diythef varidus engine, hose, and hook and ladder
companies;and a secretary and treasurer were elected annually by a vote of the members.
Firefighters were added by a verbalmimation and approval process.

Even though Anglos comprised only 25% afzO & 2 y @tin in.2B88Qldzbmparetb Hispanics a70%

Anglo dominatn of city affairs extended to thearly fire department. TFDecords show that from
1881-1885 with an average TFD membership of about 20 volunteers,
there were no Hispanics listed on the annual roster In many

| respects the early fire departmentwa3 I8 |y SEOf dza A @S
W social order or fraternal organization.

This began to change in 1886. The TFD began to grow in membership
- averagingh0-60 personnel over the next fourteen years with roughly
ten per cent Hispanic participatioincludingthree influential Tucson
pioneers- Pedro Aguirre freighter, stage line operator, and cattle
rancher; Jesus Maria Eliagncher, farmer, and Indian figgr; and
Mariano Samaniegd

{ Other Tucson pioneers to serve witthe TFD during this period

include merchandisers WilliamZeckendorf and Albert Steinfeld;
| businessmen and piticians Robert Leatherwoodiram Stevensand
Fred RonstadtMayor of Tucsorand UA catalyst Charles Straussd
entertainment entrepreneur Abe Lewn. Steinfeld, Stevens, Leviand
Strauss were Fire Committee members.

Tucson  pioneer  Marianc
Samaniego and his wife pose i
1890. (Courtesy of the Journi
of Arizona History)

"{2d2iKSNY tI OAFTAO whkAfNRBIR FTANBFTAIKGISNE KFIR 088y ad
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pipe water to its facilities. Highressure steam pumps provided water to run company operations and fight fires.

® Born in Sonora, Mariano Samaniegvas a long time Tucson resident, prominent in wagon freighting, cattle
ranching, and the stagecoach business. He served four terms in the Arizona Territorial Assembly, terms on the|
County Board of Supervisors, Tucson City Council, and as Pima CaesyoAs He is acknowledged as the most
influential Tucson citizen of the 1890s. Samaniego served as a Tucson firefighter frorh8288@nd was a
member of the Fire Committee in 1892.




Public opinion ofthe job the fire
| department wasdoing ran hot ad
cold, at least as reported in thedal
papers. For example, in 188in

Fyy2dzyOAy 3 |
G¢KS T Mdidss  aref

deserving of every favor that can b
possibly shown them. They are read
Fd | Y2YSyGQa y?2
FANBO ST f @sh heiolcdlly td
the rescue of property and lives, an(

that too, at the risk of their own, )
' without the possible hope of reward Fire Committee member an
beyond a due acknowledgement o Tucson pioneer Alex Levi
their good deeds by an appreciative poses with his son.
LJdzo f A O ¢

Tucson pioneer Albert Steinfel
was a member of the Fire
Committee.

An example of aonfavorable comment would be thStarreport in 1894RSa ONA 6 Ay 3 G KS
continuing battles with city hall over additional firefighting equipment

G ¢ KS THiadsNke inthot Rater althe time and it
looks as if nothing can be done to adjust matters. T
council members have about come to the conclusi
GKFG AG A& °t K2LStSaa Ol

In 1900 the first paid firefighter was added to the TF
beginning a slow transition to a fulpaid T® by 1915.

Following the service of Sam Baird arfttomas A. Hallahaas
Chiefs of the organizations that precedede TFD,seven
additional men, starting with Jack Boleyserved as Chf of
the TFOrom 18831900, mosif themfor a year or less. Theil
full-time occupations includefiauling and deliverymnachinist,
proprietor ofa soda workssaloon keeper, opera house owne
and hardware store proprietor

Highly respectedlackBoleyn served two different termsas

Chief for a total of eleven and halfears- well over half of the Jack Boleyn as Chaf of the TFD for

11 1/2of its first 20years. Courtesy
of TFD)

°In the migt19" century, Charles Dickens captured the spirit aoik lof volunteer fire companies by using the
GSNY GCANB [ RRAS&aé (2 RSEONAROGS FTANBFAIKGISNA SEKAODA




early TFDperiod - from August 1883 to June 188hd from January 1888 to September 189&ie
operated a successful hauling business in Tucson for nearly thirty years and long after retifement,
still working as a volunteeiireman in 191Q died as a heravhen a building collapsed on him while
fighting a fire (More to come)

Fire Alarns. Concurrent withthe formation of Hook and Ladder Compang.N in late June 1881, the
CommonCouncil accepted a proposal from the new Arizona Telephone Configaayire alarm system

- a long term contract where the phone company would install and maintain circuitrgsbexd
telegraphlines, and introduce improvements over the yearBy Deember 1881 eighteen fire alarm
boxes were installedround townwith keys available

at convenient locations near the alarms. All
policemen carried keys. The fire alarm boxes
continued to be used through the 1890s, but byo98

g SNBE 02y aA RS NBRnsdor & e liirdzl G
alarm system were in the works by 1900.

¥ After the Council approved the purchase of the alarm
# boxes, theyordered a 1,44%ound alarm bell from
Boston. Wherthe bell arrived in Decembet881, it
g was instakéd in a newly erected twstory bell tower
in the ChurchPlazaat the center of town The tower
was built of wood throughoutand sat upon a
foundation of stone. The lower floor was -léet
square and builto be rented out. In January 1882
4 the Arizona Telephone Company moved into the
secord floor of the bell tower andlirected alarms to
that location to save time and ring the bell more
quickly when needed. The first floor served asa
| meeting place for TO & 2 y&ar and Common
% Counci] and a polling place during elections.The
M alarm bell resided in the wooden tower until August
Myyo 6KSy Al o6+a Y20SR
station°

The old wooden bell tower after it was move
from Church Plaza. (Courtesy of the Arizc
CANBYIYyQa !'3aa20ALGA2Y 3 MdH PO

10 after the bell was moved, the City rented out the original fire alarm tower as office space for several Jears.
telephone company housed its exchange there until 1896. About 1900 a judge bought the tower as a playhouse
F2N) KAa OKAfRNBY |yR Y2@0SR AlG | FSg of201a G2 KAa
residence, county highway officg, N} 383> O2dzy G e | ISy (i Qs redtd, bafddeSburningyYoR T A
the ground in 1934,




In 1891 Tucson was divided into five wards. A bell ¢
was assignedot each ward so firefighterstening to
the alarm could get a good idea of the location of t
fire. After continuous rapid ringing of the bell, th
alarm would endwith one, two, three, four, or five
slow taps to identify the particular ward.

Fire Statiorp { LWZNNBR o6& ¢dz04:+

of May 1883 and the approval of Ordinarde. 45 that
formally created theTucson Fire Department, the
Common Council aproved the building of ¢ dzO &

first fire station. This was part of a building compléi
that included a new City Hall and a new Polig@ =
Headquarters. The three buildings were completed i
18.83, just beforg severe economic depression The original fire bell was displayed at a Tl
Arizona and Tucsan 1884. Fire Fair in 1981. (Courtesy of TFD)

TFD Station 1 was openadJuly 1883

at 111 N. Church Avenue, a couple of
blocks northeast of Church Plaza. The
station was a twestory adobe
building on a stone foundation that
measured 37 feet across the front and
60 feet deep- large enough to garage
significant future firefighting
equipment. At the west end of the
building was a new bell tower which
stood 75 feet high and was tdpot
square. On August 19, 1883, the
alarm bell was removed from the
original wooden bell tower in Church
Plaza and installed in the new tower
behind the new fire statior?

¢dz0az2yQa FANRG FANB adldrzy
behind the building. (Courtesy of TFD)

" Even though Tucson had been served by fire alarm boxes and a bell since 1881, another source of fire alarm
firing three pistol shots, remained in vag in Tucson until at least 1900. On July 23, 1900 tleson Daily Citizen
reported that in the middle of the previous night, a man had fired three shots to scare a persistently barking dog
unintentionally summoning the fire department.

2¢ dz0 a fesyf fiteastation was in steady use until 1909, before moving a few blocks eabtavehue. A second
fire station would not be built in Tucson until 191The original fire alarm bell moved with TFD Station 1% 6
Avenue in 1909, resided at the 2oha Historical Society from 1984, returned to the TFD in 1981, and was

11




